

**Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 and 4 are effective for the county fiscal year beginning January 1, 1982 after the filing of local approval certificates pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021, Subdivision 3, by both the city council of the city of St. Paul and the board of county commissioners of Ramsey county.

Sections 2 and 3 shall become effective the day after final enactment and be applicable to incumbent juvenile court and family court judges.

Approved May 28, 1981

**CHAPTER 293 — S.F.No. 489**

*An act relating to crimes; immunity from prosecution; changing the current transactional immunity to conform with federal use immunity; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.09.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.09, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. In any criminal proceeding, including a grand jury proceeding, paternity proceeding, or proceeding in juvenile court, if it appears a person refuses may be entitled to refuse to answer a question or produce evidence of any other kind on the ground that he may be incriminated thereby, and if the prosecuting attorney, in writing, requests the chief judge of the district or a judge of the court in which the proceeding is pending to order that person to answer the question or produce the evidence, the judge, after notice to the witness and hearing, shall so order if he finds that to do so would not be contrary to the public interest and would not be likely to expose the witness to prosecution in another state or in the federal courts, and that person shall comply with the order.

After complying, and if, but for this section, he would have been privileged to withhold the answer given or the evidence produced by him, ~~he shall not be prosecuted or subjected to penalty or forfeiture for or on account of any transaction, matter or thing concerning which, in accordance with the order, he gave, answered, or produced evidence, no testimony or other information compelled under the order, or any information directly or indirectly derived from such testimony or other information may be used against the witness in any criminal case,~~ but he may be prosecuted or subjected to penalty or forfeiture for any perjury, false swearing or contempt committed in answering, or in failing to answer, or in producing, or failing to produce, evidence in accordance with the order.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. In every case not provided for in subdivision 1 and in which it is provided by law that a witness shall not be excused from giving testimony tending to criminate himself, no person shall be excused from testifying or producing any papers or documents on the ground that his testimony may tend to criminate him or subject him to a penalty or forfeiture; but ~~he shall not be prosecuted or subjected to a penalty or forfeiture for or on account of any action, matter, or thing concerning which he shall so testify~~ no testimony or other information directly or indirectly derived from such testimony or other information may be used against the witness in any criminal case, except for perjury committed in such testimony.

Sec. 2. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective August 1, 1981 and applies to proceedings commencing on or after that date.

Approved May 28, 1981

---

CHAPTER 294 — S.F.No. 525

*An act relating to advertising devices; requiring compensation for removing certain devices; providing for maintenance of areas; increasing certain fees for outdoor advertising permits; requiring recommendations to the legislature for a comprehensive directional signing program; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 173.13, and 173.17; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 173.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 173.17, is amended to read:

**173.17 REMOVAL OF DEVICES, TIME FOR REMOVAL; COMPENSATION.**

It is hereby declared that where in order to carry out the provisions of this ~~section~~ chapter it is necessary that property rights be acquired, such acquisition is for a public purpose and is necessary for a highway purpose. The commissioner of transportation is authorized to acquire by purchase, gift or condemnation all advertising devices and all property rights pertaining thereto which are prohibited under the provisions of ~~section 173.16~~ this chapter, and any rules or regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, provided that such advertising devices were in lawful existence on June 8, 1971. In any such acquisition, purchase or condemnation, just compensation shall be paid for:

(1) The taking from the owner of such sign, display or device of all right, title, leasehold and interest in such sign, display or device; and

(2) The taking from the owner of the real property on which such advertising device is located immediately prior to its removal or relocation, the

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.